1978

# The Mountain States Telephone & Telegraph Co. v. Salt Lake City : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

I. NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a suit challenging the constitutionality and legality of those taxes which Salt Lake City imposes on the gross revenue derived from that part of Plaintiff's telephone business which is conducted within Salt Lake City. Plaintiff claims that other businesses are permitted to compete with Plaintiff within Salt Lake City without paying the same taxes required of Plaintiff. Plaintiff also claims that the most recent increase in the challenged taxes operates as an impermissible utility rate increase.

II. DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The Law and Motion Division of the Third Judicial District Court, Honorable David K. Winder, granted Defendant Salt Lake City's motion for summary judgment and dismissed Plaintiff's complaint.



### III. NATURE OF RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant asks this Court to reverse the judgment of the District Court and to remand the case for trial.

### IV. STATEMENT OF FACTS

By its ordinance set out in Bill No. 110 of 1977, published July 1, 1977 (R. 172), Salt Lake City increased the utility revenue tax it imposes on that part of Plaintiff's business which is conducted within Salt Lake City to a total of eight percent, including the two percent component of the total revenue tax which has historically been known as the franchise fee.

During the period when the bill amending this section of the ordinance was being considered by the city's Board of Commissioners, various discussions and written communications took place between Plaintiff and Defendant with respect to the question of what competition Plaintiff was experiencing in the Salt Lake City market for telephone equipment. A summary of the information which Plaintiff provided Defendant with respect to this question is contained in that letter dated June 29, 1977, which, together with its attachments, appears as Exhibit "1" to that affidavit of Kenneth R. Madsen dated June 22, 1978 (R. 269-296). That letter informed Defendant of the existence of six companies active in the Salt Lake market whose principal business

consists of or includes direct competition with Plaintiff and who provide telephone terminal equipment on terms and conditions virtually identical to those of the Plaintiff telephone company (R. 272, 279-284). Defendant was also provided with the identities of some of Plaintiff's major accounts which had been lost to these companies during the prior year (R. 279-284). Defendant was further informed of the existence of an extensive number of retail outlets which were selling telephone equipment in competition with Plaintiff, but whose sales would not be subject to the eight percent tax which is challenged in this suit (R. 272-78).

On July 26, 1977, Defendant passed an ordinance purporting to impose a six percent tax on businesses in competition with Plaintiff. Section 20-3-14.1 Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, Utah, 1965 (R. 14; para. 10). The pleadings reflect a dispute as to whether Defendant has ever collected any tax from Plaintiff's competitors pursuant to this provision. Plaintiff's complaint alleges that no such tax has been collected (R. 6; para. 20). Defendant's answer denies this allegation (R. 14, para. 11), but Defendant has not presented by affidavit any evidence that it has collected this tax.

As part of the information received by Defendant with respect to this tax, Defendant was informed by the Washington, D. C. counsel for four of Plaintiff's competitors that these

four companies had sold \$270,000 worth of telephone equipment in Salt Lake City during 1976, and that these companies estimated that this sum represented 43% of the telephone equipment of this type sold in Salt Lake City during 1976 (R. 297-99).

Plaintiff alleges in its complaint that it is required by orders issued by the Utah Public Service Commission to collect taxes of the type at issue in this suit from those customers who use its services within the limits of Salt Lake City; and that under the facts of this case, the challenged amendment operated as a utility rate increase (R. 4, para. 11). Defendant denied, for lack of information and belief, the allegation that Plaintiff has complied with the applicable orders of the Public Service Commission (R. 13, para. 5), and denied that the challenged tax increase operated as a utility rate increase.

Defendant moved for summary judgment on several grounds. The District Court granted Defendant's motion, stating in its memorandum decision only that:

"It is the opinion of the Court that the franchise fee and the utility revenue tax in question in this case, and which have been imposed by the defendant upon the plaintiff are valid and constitutional and have not been disproportionately (as compared with other businesses similarly situated) taxed upon the plaintiff and so as to be violative of either the Constitution of Utah or the United States Constitution."  
(R. 447).

## V. ARGUMENT

### I. THE COURT FAILED TO RECOGNIZE THAT PLAINTIFF'S ALLEGATIONS THAT IT HAS COMPETITORS WHO ARE NOT REQUIRED TO PAY THE TAX AT ISSUE RAISE DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT

#### 1. The Allegations and their Evidentiary Support.

The District Court was presented with an undisputed factual showing that a drastic change had occurred with respect to the extent to which Plaintiff is required to compete with other companies in the sale or lease of telephone equipment. In 1974, the Federal Communications Commission, in that series of cases which have come to be known in the telecommunications industry as "The Interconnect Cases," issued an order which had the effect of initiating nationwide competition in the sale of telephone equipment. This order, In the Matter of Telerant Leasing Corp., 45 F.C.C. 2d 204 (1974) was presented to the District Court by affidavit and is part of the Record on Appeal (R. 327-49).

An explanation of the background of this decision is necessary to show its impact on the case before this Court. In Carterfone v. AT&T, 13 F.C.C. 2d 420 (1968), the F.C.C. ruled that federal tariffs governing the conduct of telephone utility companies could not prohibit the connection of telephones and switchboards manufactured by other companies to telephone networks used in interstate commerce. The Carterfone decision, did not, however, prescribe any specific interconnection policy

for telephone utilities. The utilities responded to the Carterfone decision by filing tariffs which permitted connection to the interstate telephone system of telephones and switchboards manufactured by independent manufacturers so long as the installation included certain specified electronic protective devices which had to be provided by the utility companies.

In the early 1970's, some state utility commissions gave notice that they planned to issue tariffs prohibiting interconnection of telephones and switchboards manufactured by sources other than the utility companies to any telephone exchange except where the telephones and switchboards were used exclusively for interstate communication. In the 1974 Telerant decision, the Federal Communications Commission issued an order declaring that state regulatory commissions had no power to issue tariffs which were more restrictive with respect to interconnection than the then applicable F.C.C. tariffs unless it could be shown that such state tariffs would apply solely to communications within that state. The Fourth Circuit affirmed the F.C.C.'s Telerant ruling in the 1974 case of North Carolina Utilities Commission v. F.C.C. (hereinafter referred to as North Carolina I), 537 F.2d 787 (Fourth Cir. 1976), Cert. denied, 97 S. C.T. 651 (1976).

The Carterfone and Telerant rulings were further broadened by the F.C.C. in its case, Docket No. 19528, which was

also affirmed by the Fourth Circuit in North Carolina Utilities Commission v. F.C.C. (hereinafter referred to as North Carolina II), 552 F.2d 1026 (Fourth Cir. 1976). In that case, the F.C.C. ruled that telephone company tariffs governing interstate communication would be required to allow connection to the telephone lines of any terminal equipment which had been registered with the F.C.C. in accordance with a registration program established by the Docket 19528 Order. The effect of this ruling was to permit the attachment of any registered terminal equipment to the national telephone network without being forced to use intermediate electronic protective devices supplied by telephone utility companies. The history of the interconnect cases and the significance of their impact on the telecommunications industry is set forth in the Fourth Circuit ruling in the North Carolina II case, a copy of which was presented to the District Court by affidavit and which appears as Pages 301-326 of the Record on Appeal in this matter.

The Fourth Circuit's opinion in the North Carolina II case points out that the net legal effect of the interconnect cases was to deprive telephone utility companies of the "private lawmaking authority" they had previously enjoyed over independent manufacturers of telephone equipment. 552 F.2d 1035 at 1051. The practical effect of the interconnect cases was to stimulate companies other than telephone utility companies to

start manufacturing and selling telephone equipment. The success of some of these companies is dramatically illustrated by the letter from their counsel to Defendant, which appears at Pages 298-300 of the Record on Appeal. This letter indicates that by 1976, four of these companies had captured what they were willing to estimate was 43% of the market for telephone equipment in Salt Lake City. These companies further represented to Defendant that they had collectively sold some \$270,000 worth of telephone equipment within Salt Lake City in that year. The letter and attachments at Pages 272-278 of the Record shows that by June of 1977, more than 50 retail outlets, including most of the major department stores in Salt Lake, were selling telephone equipment in direct competition with Plaintiff. Salt Lake City has given all these businesses a competitive advantage over Plaintiff by requiring Plaintiff to add 8% to the cost of the telephone equipment it sells or leases, while not requiring that other businesses pay the same tax on the telephone equipment which they sell or lease.

## 2. The Materiality of the Allegations.

The facts set out above were presented to the District Court by affidavit, and were not disputed by Defendant. Although the Court did not discuss how it had dealt with these facts in reaching its decision on Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment, the most reasonable inference appears to be that the

Court must have accepted the argument presented by Defendant in its memorandum in support of its motion to the effect that the holding of this Court in the case of Mountain States Telephone & Telegraph Company v. Ogden City, 26 U.2d 487 P.2d 849 (1971), stands for the proposition that Defendant has no legal obligation, regardless of what level of economic competition Plaintiff may be experiencing, other than to tax Plaintiff at the same rate at which it taxes the other two utility companies which operate within the city. The Ogden City case, however, was decided before the Federal Communication Commission's ruling in the Telerant case discussed above, and at a time when Plaintiff was not experiencing competition in the sale of telephone equipment as alleged and adduced by affidavit in this matter.

The existence of this competition brings the facts of this case within the holding of this Court's decision in Salt Lake City v. Utah Light & Railway Co., 45 U.50, 142 P. 1067 (1914). In that case, Salt Lake City passed an ordinance which prohibited engaging in the business of furnishing, distributing or selling electricity, where meters were used to gauge or measure the electricity, without procuring a license from the city so to do. The ordinance further provided for an annual license fee of \$1.00 for each electric meter used by the license holder. The opinion shows that although plaintiff was the only electric company which used meters to measure the



electricity which it sold to its customers, there were at the time other companies engaged in selling electricity within Salt Lake City. The plaintiff electric company alleged that Salt Lake City's ordinance was invalid because it excluded from taxation various companies which were in fact competing with plaintiff in the sale of electricity within Salt Lake City.

The opinion notes that then, as now, all of Salt Lake City's power to tax businesses operating within its limits was conferred on the city by a statute which includes the limitation that "all such license fees and taxes shall be uniform in respect to the class upon which they are imposed." 142 P. at 1070. This language is identical with the present language of §10-8-80, Utah Code Annotated.

In the Utah Light & Railway case, Salt Lake City argued that the Court needed only to determine that plaintiff was the only utility which used meters to measure the electricity it delivered to its customers from which the conclusion would follow that it could be taxed in a separate category. This Court rejected that method of analysis and examined the economic significance of the facts shown in the Record to determine whether plaintiff and the companies which were not subject to the ordinance were similarly situated. The Court then set out in these words the test which is to be applied in testing the

validity of a city's business revenue ordinances:

"Can the business specified in the ordinance be so classified that some of those who are engaged therein may be required to pay the tax, while others who are conducting the same business are not required to do so? Clearly not." 142 P. at 1071.

The opinion then explains in greater detail the reasoning upon which this test is based:

"A license tax might not be unjust, though laid upon a single occupation, provided that it was so laid that none who followed that occupation escaped it. Let it reach all of a class, either of persons or things; it matters not whether those included in it may be one or many, or whether they reside in any particular locality or are scattered all over the state. But when, for any reason, it becomes discriminative between individuals of the class taxed, and selects some for an exceptional burden, the tax is deprived of the necessary element of legal equality, and becomes inadmissible." (Emphasis added.) 142 P. at 1071.

It is significant that the foregoing language is inconsistent with the fundamental premise upon which Defendant's argument is based. In concluding its argument to the District on this issue, Defendant stated in its memorandum of points and authorities:

"It is respectfully submitted that the issue of classification has already been decided by the Utah Supreme Court; however, in any event, the case law is abundant and not subject to challenge at this date and the classification of the Plaintiff and the other utilities is lawful in all particulars and within the legislative prerogative of Salt Lake City Corporation." (R. 430).

Although this language is somewhat unclear, it seems, when read in the light of those issues raised by Plaintiff's complaint, to mean that Defendant contends that this Court's 1971 Ogden City case, supra, means that Plaintiff can never challenge any inequities in those taxes imposed on it by Salt Lake City unless such inequities should happen to exist between Plaintiff and the two other major utility companies. An adjudication that a tax is valid is not as static and permanent as Defendant apparently contends. The language quoted above from the Utah Light & Railway case shows that taxing authorities, such as Salt Lake City, are subject to the restriction that their taxes, even if once reasonable, may become discriminatory. When such discrimination occurs, the tax is stripped of whatever legality it may previously have enjoyed, and becomes unlawful and void. This Court then concluded its opinion by commenting on the duty of courts when they are presented with facts showing that some of those who are engaged in a business are required to pay the tax, while others who are conducting the same business are not so taxed:

"Equality, therefore, becomes a safeguard against, if not an absolute prevention of, excessive and oppressive taxation. Where, however, those who, for the time being, are intrusted with the power to pass laws or ordinances by which taxation may be imposed invade the rule of equality prescribed by the paramount law, it is the duty of the courts, when proper application is made, to declare such

law or ordinance void, and thus arrest the evil at its inception. In doing so the courts are not, as it is sometimes popularly assumed, interfering with the law-making power, but are merely compelling that power to observe and obey the paramount law. For the reasons last stated, we are required to declare the ordinance in question invalid." (142 P. at 1071-72.)

It is this duty which Plaintiff contends the District Court failed to adequately perform. The District Court's duty to diligently safeguard the rule of equality referred to in the foregoing quotation from the Utah Light & Railway case is augmented in this case by the fact that the question of equality of taxation was raised by means of a motion for summary judgment. Because summary judgment has the effect of denying the complaining party the right to try its claims, the District Court in ruling on such a motion should carefully scrutinize the allegations of the complaint and all facts submitted by the complaining party to discern the existence of any disputed fact. In the event any disputed issue of material fact is presented, the summary judgment motion should be denied. Rich v. McGovern, 551 P.2d 1266 (Utah 1976); Singleton v. Alexander, 19 U.2d 292, 431 P.2d 126 (1967).

Those facts adduced by Plaintiff which show the existence of at least fifty retail outlets in direct competition with Plaintiff in the sale of telephone equipment within Salt Lake City bring this case within the holding of this Court in the case of Orem City v. Pyne, 16 U.2d 355, 401 P.2d 181 (1965). In that case, this Court incorporated as its opinion the opinion

of Judge Maurice Harding in case No. 4039, District Court of Utah County, State of Utah, which opinion appears at Pages 263-66 of the Record on Appeal. In that case, the City had passed an ordinance which set a fixed annual tax rate for a number of businesses listed by type in the ordinance. Another section of the same ordinance imposed a tax, based on gross sales, on any business not specifically listed in other sections of the ordinance. This Court held that the taxation imposed under that ordinance was unconstitutional because the ordinance had the effect of taxing one business which sold tangible personal property at a rate which was in some cases as much as twelve times the amount of tax required of other businesses also selling tangible personal property. In this case, the facts alleged in Plaintiff's complaint, and put before the District Court by affidavit, show the existence of many retail sellers of tangible personal property which do not pay the eight percent tax which plaintiff is required to pay when it sells or leases the exact same item of telephone equipment.

In Slater v. Salt Lake City, 115 U. 476, 206 P.2d 153 (1949), a case in which one of Salt Lake City's ordinances was held unconstitutional for failing to regulate uniformly different businesses competing in the same type of sales, this Court commented on the judiciary's function when presented with the allegation that a municipal ordinance subjects the

complaining party to an unconstitutional tax burden:

"[The Court's function] is to determine whether an enactment operates equally upon all persons similarly situated. If it does then the discrimination is within permissible legislative limits. If it does not, then the differentiation would be without reasonable basis and the act does not meet the test of constitutionality." 206 P.2d 153 at 160.

In this case, Plaintiff had alleged and put before the District Court by affidavit facts showing that although Defendant Salt Lake City had been fully informed of the fact that Plaintiff was experiencing highly successful competition from other companies which had recently been permitted to enter the market for telephone equipment. Salt Lake City elected to tax only Plaintiff while failing or refusing to insure the Plaintiff's similarly situated competitors also paid taxes on some uniform basis. Plaintiff contends that the District Court erred in not recognizing that these facts were sufficient to raise a disputed question of material fact regarding the extent to which the legal and economic changes explained in the preceding sections of this brief required Salt Lake City to tax Plaintiff's competition uniformly in comparison with the taxes it required of Plaintiff. The failure of the District Court to recognize the need for equal taxation under these circumstances seems particularly obdurate in light of the fact that the pleadings show that Salt Lake City had apparently recognized the existence of

this obligation by enacting §20-3-14.1 of its ordinances which purported to tax Plaintiff's competition.

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