1978

The Mountain States Telephone & Telegraph Co. v. Salt Lake City : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE ASSERTION THAT SALT LAKE CITY IS ILLEGALLY SETTING UTILITY RATE SCHEDULES THROUGH ITS TAXING POWERS, CONTRARY TO THE POWERS VESTED IN THE UTAH PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION, IS UNFOUNDED.

- A. THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION TARIFF ORDER DIRECTED AN AUTOMATIC RATE ADJUSTMENT EQUAL TO LOCAL TAX OR FRANCHISE FEE IMPOSITIONS.

It is to be noted that the Telephone Company's complaint asserts that the Respondent, Salt Lake City, is illegally setting rate schedules, which power is expressly vested in the Utah Public Service Commission. However, the undisputed facts demonstrate that on or about December 19, 1951 Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company requested the Utah Public Service Commission to amend its general tariff orders and authorize that Company to pass through to its customers (as a surcharge) local taxes levied against the Company on a pro-rata basis.

In summarizing the position of the Plaintiff-Company, the Public Service Commission stated:

"Mountain States [the plaintiff] contends that fair and non-discriminatory rates require the recovery of these expenses [municipal taxes] apart from state-wide rate schedules, and has filed the tariff in question to accomplish such results." Public Service Commission of Utah Investigation and Suspension Docket No. 83, Reports, Findings and Order, R-30.

The Commission noted that municipal sales, use, occupation, franchise, gross receipts and other charges against utilities had evolved to become a significant factor in utility expenses. As such, to include them within the State-wide rate would constitute a discrimination against users residing outside the respective municipalities. Therefore, it stated with respect to the Telephone Company's 1951 proposal:

"Mountain States under the proposed tariff, would recover the amount of such tax expenses from the users of its service within the respective municipalities assessing such

taxes and impositions." I. & S. Docket No. 83,
Id. at p. 4.

Thereafter, the Commission noted that these local taxes were likely to continue to raise. It observed:

"It is equally apparent that as the costs of operating municipal governments grow levies for these various taxes and fees are likely to increase unevenly, thereby accentuating the discrimination." I. & S. Docket No. 83, Id. at p. 6; R-33.

The Commission then correctly noted that the cities had the power to increase these taxes. It observed:

"Apparently each city or town may increase or decrease these exactions in its own discretion. This being so these impositions will continue to fluctuate widely so that rates constructed to spread these expanses to users of telephone service throughout the State have the aspect of unlawful discrimination." I. & S. Docket No. 83, Id. at p. 9; R-36.

Thus, the Commission granted the plaintiff's 1952 request for flexible authority to pass on any local taxes on a pro-rata basis. The utility company was directed to file a "Tax Adjustment Schedule," showing all of these special taxes and impositions which had been imposed by a city or town; thereafter, it was authorized to pass on the new tariff rate as a surcharge to its billing, without a new rate hearing. The Commission specifically ruled and held:

"Upon the filing of such Tax Adjustment Schedule as above provided, the company is authorized and directed to change the rates for exchange service and the exchanges affected thereby [imposition of municipal taxes], in accordance with such schedule and said tariff, on billing dated immediately subsequent thereto." I. & S. Docket No. 83, Id. at p. 12; R-39 (Emphasis added).

Further, the Plaintiff was specifically authorized to file amended schedules as new taxes or extractions were levied in the future by cities. The order specifically provided:

"Said company [plaintiff] shall file from time to time amendments and revisions of said Tax Adjustment Schedule at the rates and amounts of such taxes, imposition and other charges, or the base on which the tax or imposition is measured are changed, altered or amended. . ."
I. & S. Docket No. 83, Id. at p. 12; R-39.

This order was challenged in court and this Court affirmed it in all particulars. The Court summarized the central issue as follows:

"The question remains: Can the commission permit a utility to charge and bill subscribers of an area, for payment of imposts on the company levied by local governmental authority of that area?" Ogden City v. Public Service Commission, 260 P.2d 751, 753 (Utah, 1953).

Thereafter, the Court reviewed some of the abundant authority upholding similar decisions of Public Service Commissions across the country and held as follows:

"[The Commission Order surcharging local taxes] conforms more nearly to the views of this court, particularly where, as here, ever-changing and probably ever-increasing local imposts appear on the horizon which neither the legislature nor the company to date has controlled, and where, should we conclude otherwise, discrimination would fluctuate in direct proportion to the actions of a myriad of local governing bodies."
Ogden City v. Public Service Commission, Id. at p. 753 (Emphasis added).

* * *

"The order of the Commission is not only an exercise of its legal authority, but appeals to basic equities, — at least eliminating one discrimination in a field where it is impossible

to eliminate them all." Id. at p. 754 (Emphasis added).

Other jurisdictions which have considered the problem have likewise, with unanimity, upheld Public Service Commission orders allowing utility companies to pass on local taxes as a surcharge on their current billing, without new rate hearings.

On such well reasoned and authoritative opinion is the decision of the City of Scottsbluff v. United Tel. Co. of the West, 106 N.W.2d 12 (Neb., 1960). In this case the court discussed the several alternatives for tariff adjustments to cover the expense of local taxation. It noted that the surcharge method of passing through the taxes on a pro-rata basis avoided the problems of discrimination on other utility subscribers, living outside that city. It also correctly noted that such an automatic surcharge increase avoided the costly and time consuming problem of frequent rate hearings, whenever local taxes were increased. The Court then succinctly held:

"We are convinced that the department [Commission fixing telephone rates], in so far as such taxes [local city occupation tax] are concerned, has the power to fix special exchange rates applicable to the different communities, which will in effect require the ratepayers in each community to absorb a sum equal to the amount of the tax which respondent is required to pay to that municipality." City of Scottsbluff v. United Tel. Co. of the West, Id. at p. 20 (Emphasis added).

For other cases with similar ruling as Utah and Nebraska,

see: State ex rel Pacific Tel. & Telegraph Co. v. Dept. of Public Service, 142 P.2d 498 (Wash., 1943), cited with approval by the Utah Supreme Court; City of Newport News v. Chesapeake & Potomac Telephone Co., 96 S.E.2d 145 (Va.); Village of Maywood v. Illinois Commerce Commission, 178 N.E.2d 345 (Ill., 1961); City of Elmhurst v. Western United Gas & Electric Co., 1 N.E.2d 489 (Ill., 1946); City of Scottsbluff v. United Telephone of the West, 106 N.W.2d 12 (Neb., 1960); State ex rel City of Seattle v. Dept. of Public Utilities, 207 P.2d 712 (Wash., 1949); Colorado Municipal League v. Public Utilities Commission, 473 P.2d 960 (Colo., 1970).

It is respectfully submitted that the Public Service Commission of Utah has power to hold hearings and determine the appropriate utility rates. See, 54-7-1 et seq. Utah Code Ann., 1953, as amended. They have exercised that power as detailed above and permitted local impositions of taxes and fees to be made as an additure to utility billing.

Separate and apart from the Commission's power, under clear Utah law, a City has power to impose occupation taxes or fees for the use of its public property as provided in Section 10-8-80 Utah Code Ann., 1953. The power to raise taxes for City purposes is a separate function, belonging to local government. It is entirely distinguishable from the rate-making authority of the Public Service Commission in deciding how such costs may or may not be included in the

charges ultimately made by the utility companies to their customers.

Regarding the latter issue, the Public Service Commission has set those rates to automatically be adjusted upward to reflect the local tax increases, by a surcharge on a customer's bill. This tariff order has been approved by the Utah Supreme Court. Therefore, it is respectfully submitted that the Telephone Company's assertion that the City has somehow usurped the function of the Public Service Commission is specious. Appellant has presented no basis in law or fact to justify relief. Thus, the complaint was properly dismissed by the lower court.

- B. APPELLANT'S CASES DO NOT STAND FOR THE PROPOSITION CITED, AND DO NOT HOLD FOR A POSITION CONTRARY TO THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ORDER OR THE UTAH DECISION UPHOLDING THE LEGALITY OF THAT ORDER.

It is interesting to note that the Appellant-Telephone Company has had all the above cited cases upholding the validity of the similar Public Service orders for over four months. These other jurisdictions affirmed virtually identical systems to Utah, which set utility rates to include future tax increases by merely filing notice of the increased tax cost with the regulatory body.

However, significantly, Appellant has not even mentioned those cases or attempted to distinguish those authorities supporting the City's position in its brief. Rather, it has cited three cases, whose holdings are irrelevant and immaterial

to the issue before the Court. See p. 18 of Appellant's Brief. Please note:

1. Appellant cites Dvorkin v. Illinois Bell, 340 N.E.2d 98 (Ill.App., 1975) for the proposition that the Public Service Commission has exclusive jurisdiction to set utility rates. The City has no disagreement with that assertion, but it is not at issue in this case. Rather, the undisputed facts of record demonstrate that the rate schedules were adopted by the Public Service Commission. These rate formulas permitted the utilities to automatically adjust the schedule by filing notice of a taxing cost increase which was then included as additure on the rate tariff authority, without an additional rate hearing.

Further, it is important to note that the Illinois Bell case does not stand for the proposition that such a self-implementing rate adjustment order by the Public Service Commission is illegal as inferred by Appellant. Rather, that case dealt exclusively with an allegation by a customer that a telephone company's practice of providing free service to retired officers, directors and employees violated the Public Utilities Act of that jurisdiction. The theory of the plaintiff in that litigation was that other customers were charged higher rates to subsidize the privileged class of former company employees. The plaintiff sought to have the Court fix the utility rates by ordering a reduction of rates for the class of which he was a member.

The Court correctly noted in dicta it would be a usurpation of the function of the Commission for the Court to fix the rates, as requested. However, the Court's decision, denying the requested relief, was premised on the fact that the plaintiff did not appeal from the administrative decision of the Commission when that regulatory body considered the precise issue raised in the litigation. Thus, the Court held as follows:

"The doctrine of exhaustion has long been a basic principle of administrative law, and a party aggrieved by administrative action ordinarily cannot seek review in the courts without first pursuing all administrative remedies available to him. . . ." Id. at p. 105.

Obviously, the case does not stand for proposition that the order of the Utah Public Service Commission is or was illegal. Further, it does not hold that local government may not increase its taxes for utilities for the utilities to pay in any way they may deem logical or appropriate. However, it does stand for the proposition that one cannot collaterally attach a Commission order when one has failed to exhaust administrative remedies, which the Telephone Company has done in this case and which point will be discussed hereafter at page 17.

2. The case of Mississippi Public Service Commission v. Home Telephone Company, 110 S.2d 618 (Miss., 1959) cited at p. 18 of Appellant's Brief is not related factually or in legal principle to the issues before the Court. In

this case, a challenge was made concerning certain alleged business expenses which were used by the Public Service Commission in setting telephone company rates. The Court ruled that the Public Service Commission had the power to refuse to consider excessively high salaries in setting utility rates. It held that the Commission could not prohibit the payment of such salaries, but it could exclude from "operating expenses" the excess payments, when calculating costs for rate-setting purposes.

The Court further noted that the function of rate-making was legislative in character and that the Court could not fix the public utility rates. Rather, it was the Court's function to determine whether the Public Service Commission proceeding was conducted in harmony with law, the conclusions were supported by substantial evidence or whether the rates constituted a confiscatory taking. The Mississippi Court noted that the lower court erred in fixing a rate of return for the Telephone Company and, further, correctly stated:

"The function of rate making is purely legislative in character. It is not within the power of a court to fix the rates to be charged by public utilities, although a court may restrain the imposition of a confiscatory rates, or, under the Public Utility Act, determine whether the rates as fixed are supported by substantial evidence or within the other statutory restrictions set forth in [the] Code, . . . (citations omitted)." Id. at p. 626.

The case before the bar does not have an issue concerning

what salaries may be used as operating expense, and there is no issue of a court attempting to set a utility rate. That ruling simply does not relate to the issues of this case.

3. Similarly, the case of State of Texas v. Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, cited at p. 18 of Appellant's Brief is unrelated to any issue before the Court. In that case, a privately owned telephone company, in a jurisdiction unregulated by a governmental regulatory agency, increased the rate for its intra-state long distance telephone calls. The rate increase was challenged by the Attorney General of the State as excessive.

The appellate Court held that in the absence of regulation, by an authorized governmental body, the private utility company could set its own intra-state rates, subject to judicial review under common law principles. After citing authority for the proposition that such utility rates were subject to the limitations dictated by "reasonableness" and "justice," the Court held:

"This legal obligation upon the telephone company—that of not extracting exorbitant or unreasonable charges for its services—would be meaningless if there were no judicial redress for its violation." Id. at 526 S.W.2d 529.

Again, the facts of this case and its holding have no applicability to the issues before this Court.

C. THE APPELLANT-COMPANY MAY NOT COLLATERALLY ATTACK A PUBLIC COMMISSION ORDER,

PROMULGATED AT APPELLANT'S REQUEST AND
JUDICIALLY DEFENDED BY APPELLANT, WHEN
IT DID NOT EXHAUST ADMINISTRATIVE
REMEDIES TO CHALLENGE OR MODIFY THE
ORDER.

The undisputed facts of record clearly demonstrate that the City has not undertaken to fix utility rates; rather, the Telephone Company in the instant case has utilized a 1952 Public Service Commission order to pass through certain City assessments to its customers on a pro-rata basis. It has implemented this Public Service Commission order by filing "Adjusted Tax Schedules," as per the requirements of that order. See Statement of Facts 1-3, supra.

Further, it is of significant import that the Telephone Company has, at no time since the entry of the Public Service Commission Order in 1952, sought to rescind or amend that Order or to seek judicial review of it. In fact (as noted in the Statement of Facts), the Telephone Company and its present counsel obtained the Order through its own petition to the Public Service Commission and successfully judicially defended that Order.

The law concerning Public Service Commission orders provides:

"The Commission may at any time, upon notice to the public utility affected and after opportunity to be heard as provided in the case of complaints, rescind, alter or amend any order or decision made by it. Any order rescinding, altering or amending a prior order or decision shall when served upon the Public Utility affected have the same effect as herein provided for original orders or decisions." 54-7-13 Utah Code Ann., 1953
(Emphasis added).

Further, the law specifically provides:

"In all collateral actions or proceedings the orders and decisions of the Commission which have become final shall be conclusive."
54-7-14 Utah Code Ann., 1953 (Emphasis added).

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